
ACMM MEETING MINUTES MARCH 11, 2013   1     1  

 

 

 

Meeting  

MINUTES MARCH 11, 2013 10:00 

AGRICULTURE BUILDING 
635 CAPITOL ST 

LARGE HEARING ROOM 
SALEM, OR 97301 

 

MEETING CALLED BY Todd Dalotto, ACMM Chair 

TYPE OF MEETING 
The Oregon Medical Marijuana Program (OMMP) Advisory Committee on Medical Marijuana (ACMM) 
provides an opportunity for public to discuss administrative issues with the OMMP management. 

NOTE TAKER Roni Carroll, OMMP  

TIMEKEEPER Todd Dalotto, ACMM Chair 
MEETING CALLED TO 

ORDER 10:00 AM 

ATTENDEES 

ACMM: Sandee Burbank, Todd Dalotto, Alice Ivany, Jim Klahr, Ben Mackaness, Brian Michaels, 

Stormy Ray, Cheryl Smith, Dr. Alan Cohn, and Laird Funk Excused: Dr. Gerry Lehrberger 
OMMP Staff: Tawana Nichols, Aaron Cossel, Roni Carroll, Jennifer Alcaraz, David Leland, and Dr. 
Bruce Goldberg 

PRESENT AS LISTED 
ON THE SIGN-IN 

SHEET 
Jene Adams, Claire Dalzell, Anthony Taylor, Peter Kraymer 

 

Agenda topics 

 REVIEW OF DECEMBER 5, 2012 MEETING MINUTES ACMM CHAIR 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE 
OUTCOME 

Motion: By Ms. Burbank to approve the December 5th, 2012 meeting minutes 
with corrections. Page 2 line 4 under Guest Speaker change ramped to rampant.  
Page 2 line 9 spell out Drug Trafficking Organizations (DTOs).  Add discussion 

between Ms. Burbank and Ms. Marshall regarding dispensaries under Guest 
Speaker.  Second by Mr. Dalotto. 

Ms. Burbank 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

 

 UNINTERRUPTED ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS  OHA ADMINISTRATION 

DISCUSSION  

Program Update: Ms. Nichols stated the OMMP currently has 24 permanent employees and 2 temporary employees.  The 
OMMP is in process of recruiting 4 positions.  The OMMP hasn’t started the recruitment for another manager position because 
of reclassifying the position to a higher level management position instead of an office manager as well as an assistant for 
the section manager.   
 
Statistics: Mr. Cossel stated OMMP currently has 53,353 patients.  The current number of unique OMMP caregivers is 
26,834 and the current number of unique OMMP growers is 40,409.  The number of registrations where patients have listed 
themselves as the grower is 26,914; this number includes patients who have a current card and renewal application pending.  

The number of registrations where patients have listed someone else as their grower is 27,629; this includes patients who 
have a current card and renewal application pending.  The number of physicians with a current patient on the OMMP is 
1,612.  There are currently 792 out-of-state patients, 310 out-of-state caregivers, and 323 out-of-state growers. 
 
Budget Review: Ms. Nichols stated the cash balance is $2,848,892 and the revenue for the total biennium is $12,417,111.  
The amount transferred to support other Public Health programs this biennium is $5,082,500. 

 



ACMM MEETING MINUTES MARCH 11, 2013   2     2  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DIALOGUE BETWEEN ACMM AND ADMINISTRATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TAWANA NICHOLS 

DISCUSSION  

ACMM Bylaws: Ms. Nichols stated the bylaws have been modified based on the committee’s comments and suggestions.   
 
Article III, Section 3a was amended to say the director must recommend to the ACMM for removal of a board member with 
approval of the majority of the ACMM.  Ms. Nichols stated the committee doesn’t have authority to appoint or remove 
members.  Mr. Dalotto asked if Shannon O’Fallon had reviewed the revised bylaws.  Ms. Nichols responded yes. 
 
Article III, Section 3b was retained. 
 
Ms. Nichols asked for clarification of Mr. Dalotto’s motion to accept changes with the exception of deleting health and safety 
to Article III, Section 4.  Mr. Dalotto responded to retain health and safety. 
 

Ms. Nichols stated the proposed changes were made to Article V. 
 
Article VI, Section 2 was amended per Mr. Dalatto’s motion to adopt changes.  Ms. Nichols stated the public meetings law 
applies and the public records section was moved to the end.  
 
Article VI, Staffing was amended per Mr. Mackaness’s motion to change OHA will not provide to OHA may provide.  Ms. 
Nichols stated staff support will be provided for regular meetings not subcommittee meetings as this takes employees away 
from their required duties which impacts the workload. 
 
Ms. Nichols stated more clarification is needed for the motion by Ms. Smith to revise the language in Article X, Subcommittee 
meetings. 
 
Mr. Dalotto stated the ACMM will review the revised bylaws in the interim and schedule approval for the next meeting. 
 
Schedule Next Meeting: The next ACMM meeting will be held on June 14, 2013 in Medford. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS  

The ACMM will review the revised bylaws in the interim and schedule approval for the next meeting. 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Mr. Dalotto to hold next ACMM meeting on June 14, 2013 in 
Medford.  Second by Ms. Ivany.  

Mr. Dalotto 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Mr. Dalotto to hold next ACMM meeting on June 14, 2013 in 
Medford.  Second by Ms. Ivany.  

Mr. Dalotto 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

 
 
 
GUEST SPEAKER 

 
 

DR. BRUCE GOLDBERG 

DISCUSSION  

Mr. Dalotto asked Dr. Goldberg how the ACMM can better advise him.  Mr. Dalotto stated there have been concerns 
regarding responsiveness on advice and further stated the ACMM is left with a morale problem as far as their purpose on 
advising when advising doesn’t seem to be fruitful.   
 
Dr. Goldberg responded there is discussion needed on expectations of the ACMM.  Dr. Goldberg stated it sounds like there 
are unmet expectations on the ACMM side and the ACMM should expect follow through.  Dr. Goldberg asked the ACMM if 
they are saying they are providing advice that isn’t being responded to.  Mr. Dalotto responded normally the only response 
the ACMM receives is from some sort of legal counsel.   
 
Dr. Goldberg stated he values the services the ACMM provides such as providing advice on how we can have an 
administratively effective program; meaning how we can organize and deliver service that meets the needs of our clients, 



ACMM MEETING MINUTES MARCH 11, 2013   3     3  

which is a phenomenal role and primarily the role he would like the ACMM to advise on.  Dr. Goldberg stated another piece 
set by statute is the ACMM advising on setting fees and he would be prepared to discuss this.  Dr. Goldberg stated he is 
aware fees have increased and this has caused concern by a lot of people.  Dr. Goldberg stated one place we could work on 
more effectively together is speaking to legislature.   
 
Mr. Dalotto state the ACMM has tried to communicate with the ways and means committee and has not received a response.  
Dr. Goldberg responded he thinks there are opportunities to communicate with testimony at public hearing.   
 
Ms. Burbank stated Barry Kast admitted information regarding the fee increase was deliberately withheld from the ACMM and 
the ACMM was only given a couple of days notice and were not given an opportunity to participate in hearings.  Ms. Burbank 
further discussed the ACMM educating patients on access to laws and rules.  Ms. Burbank stated the ACMM is often told they 
don’t have the authority to educate.   Dr. Goldberg responded he is interested in hearing from staff that one of the ways to 
administratively run a program is to make sure clients know how the program is administered.  Ms. Nichols responded the 
handbooks were a part of education and the first handbook was worked on by the committee but never updated.  Ms. 
Nichols further a current handbook has been established to educate patients.  Mr. Cossel further responded the OMMP has 
stressed we are not here to advocate but are here to educate.  The availability of the handbook was discussed.   
 
Dr. Goldberg stated is sounds like there are varying understandings on what materials exist and communicating clearly is a 
basic function.  Dr. Goldberg asked if there is a communication committee to review and provide input on materials.  Mr. 
Dalotto responded that’s the purpose of the Outreach Committee.   

 
Dr. Goldberg stated a good pathway to legislature is through advising and writing.  Dr. Goldberg stated he can assure the 
ACMM’s input is forwarded to the Ways and Means Committee, can advocate for opportunities for the ACMM to speak to 
legislature, and let the ACMM know what those opportunities are.  Finally, Dr. Goldberg discussed his interest in legal 
counsel’s opinion as far as where some of the lines are for the ACMM providing input. 
 
Mr. Michaels discussed issues regarding OAR development processes and excluding bias.  Dr. Goldberg responded Mr. 
Michaels should put the issues together for discussion.  Mr. Dalotto responded the ACMM will work on something in the 
interim.  Dr. Goldberg stated he will follow up with Mr. Dalotto on issues discussed. 
 
Patients being forced by their physicians to choose between using medical marijuana and other types of pain medication was 
discussed by Ms. Burbank.   

CONCLUSIONS  

The ACMM will put together a list of issues to be discussed regarding OAR development processes and forward the list to Ms. 
Nichols and Dr. Goldberg, per the request of Dr. Goldberg. 

 
MEETING ADJOURNED FOR LUNCH: 12:09 PM 

 
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 1:10 PM 

 
 SUBCOMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 

               TODD DALOTTO/ 
OUTREACH COMMITTEE 

DISCUSSION  

Horticulture Research & Safety Report: Mr. Dalotto nominated Rigel Hope for the Horticulture, Research & Safety 
Committee.  Mr. Hope is a medical doctor (MD) candidate (2015) at Oregon Health Science University (OHSU), where he is 
also the founder of the Medical Informatics Interest Group and also participates in the Steering Committee of the Access to 
Medicines PharmFree, American Medical Student Association.  Mr. Hope received his Master of Health Science in Cancer and 
Reproductive Biology from the Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health.  His thesis was on Janus in the cell: 
epigenetic regulation of gene expression in development and cancer.  Mr. Hope also has his Certificate in Healthcare 
Disparities and Inequalities.   
 
Mr. Dalotto stated the Horticulture, Research & Safety Committee has been holding off on new projects until they receive 
better direction from Dr. Goldberg regarding how they can best advise him.  Mr. Dalotto stated there has been a growing 
frustration with the lack of response and rejection of proposals that this committee has worked hard on, including those at 
the request of the OMMP. 
 
ACMM Chair Report: Mr. Dalotto led an overview of the meeting he had on February 12, 2013 with Interim Administrator 
for the Center for Health Protection, Dave Leland.  Mr. Dalotto stated Mr. Leland assured him the OMMP Program Support 
Manager, Jeff Carlson would attend the March 11, 2013 ACMM meeting.   
 
Mr. Dalotto discussed the final Oregon Administrative Rules (OARs) amendments language has been published but is not 
available on the Secretary of State’s website yet.   



ACMM MEETING MINUTES MARCH 11, 2013   4     4  

 
Mr. Dalotto stated he and Mr. Leland discussed the OMMP’s understaffing issues.  During the meeting, Mr. Leland had stated 
the legislature controls the addition of new positions. 
 
Mr. Dalotto and Mr. Leland discussed transparency between the OMMP and the ACMM as well as qualities that are looked for 
in a permanent administrator.   
 
Finally, Mr. Dalotto went over some of Mr. Leland’s responsibilities as administrator regarding tracking and reviewing 
legislation that effects the Public Health Division.  Mr. Dalotto discussed Senate Bill 281, which would add Post Traumatic 
Stress  Disorder (PTSD) to the list of qualifying medical conditions and Senate Bill 40, which would reduce felony 
classifications of manufacturing and possession of marijuana and amend exceptions to Schedule I and II controlled 
substances to reflect rescheduling of methamphetamines and marijuana. 
 
Mr. Leland led an overview on the roles and functions of other similar advisory committees that exist in the Public Health 
Division.  Mr. Leland further discussed the similar advisory committee’s roles are also driven by statute.  
 
Outreach Report & Outreach Chair election: Ms. Burbank stated the committee had as a charge from the December 
meeting to try and get a Power Point presentation, created in 2009, into a form that could be used.  Ms. Burbank stated she 
was unable to get a final version, which was approved by the OMMP.  Ms. Burbank stated there is still a possibility that it can 
be recovered, but that the presentation is very out-dated.  Ms. Burbank discussed the presentation was given to the 

Governor’s Council on Alcohol and Drugs by Ms. Nichols in August, 2008.  Ms. Burbank stated the Outreach Committee 
worked with the OMMP to expand on the presentation and the final draft was approved by the OMMP in 2009.  Ms. Burbank 
stated if the ACMM believes the presentation is something that should still be available, the Outreach Committee will continue 
to work to provide it.  Mr. Funk motioned for the Outreach Committee to continue work on the Power Point Presentation.  
Second by Ms. Ivany.  The motion passed unanimously.  Elections for Outreach Committee members and chair were held. 
 
OMMP Cover Letter and information: Ms. Burbank discussed OMMP application packets.  Ms. Burbank stated recently it 
was brought to the attention of the Outreach Committee the OMMP application packets had changed.  Ms. Burbank stated 
the ACMM was not informed of the change or invited to give input.  Ms. Nichols responded the cover letter was presented to 
the ACMM for review when the new database was being discussed.  Ms. Burbank stated the Outreach Committee feels the 
current OMMP application packet cover letter is inadequate to inform patients of aspects of the program.  Ms. Burbank stated 
the Outreach Committee feels it would be better if changes to documents would be submitted to the ACMM for input before 
implementing the changes and offers suggestions on how to make the cover letter more informative with better formatting.   
 
Ms. Burbank stated the Outreach Committee feels it is important to have a Web ID that is easy for patients to remember and 
access.  Ms. Burbank gave an example of the Secretary of State’s web address and further discussed the OMMP’s current 

web address won’t fit on one line and could be changed to something much easier to remember. 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Mr. Dalotto to nominate Mr. Hope for the Horticulture Research & 
Safety Committee.  Second by Ms. Burbank. 
 

Mr. Dalotto 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Ms. Burbank to renominate everyone already on the Outreach 
Committee.  Second by Mr. Mackaness. 

Ms. Burbank 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Ms. Burbank  to nominate Mr. Mackaness as chair of the Outreach 
Committee.  Second by Ms. Ivany. 

Ms. Burbank 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Mr. Funk for the Outreach Committee to continue work on the 
Power Point presentation.  Second by Ms. Ivany. 

Mr. Funk 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Mr. Klahr for the OMMP and Outreach Committee to revise the 
OMMP application packet cover letter to provide more information to patients.  
Second by Mr. Funk. 

Mr. Klahr 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

 OMMP FEE STRUCTURE 
REPRESENTATIVE PETER 
BUCKLEY, LAIRD FUNK 
AND DAVE LELAND 



ACMM MEETING MINUTES MARCH 11, 2013   5     5  

DISCUSSION  

Representative Buckley stated he has been in discussion with Mr. Funk regarding fees and the impact of the changes that 
went into effect during the 2011 legislative session.  Rep Buckley made an agreement on the overall Human Services budget 
and part of that agreement was changing the fee structure of the Medical Marijuana Program.  Rep Buckley stated with the 

change in fee structures we are able to maintain adequate funding levels other programs such as Seniors and People with 
Disabilities.  Rep Buckley encourages the ACMM to come forward with proposals on how to remedy the fee structure that we 
can consider as part of the budget this year.  Mr. Funk asked what the most useful timeframe to submit proposals is.  Rep 
Buckley responded the sooner proposals can be taken to the legislature the better and that sometime this month would be 
good.   
 
Mr. Dalotto stated maybe we could look at the problems of the last fee structure change and the impact on the poorest 
lowest income patients.  Mr. Dalotto stated number one, 39% of the cardholder population at the time of the fee increase 
paid the $20 fee as opposed to the $100 fee.  Mr. Dalotto further stated the other 1% were Supplemental Security Income 
(SSI) recipients and that over 90% of the low income patient population experienced a fee increase of 500%.  Mr. Dalotto 
stated second the fee to designate a grower not only makes it difficult for the most disabled patients who are physically 
unable to grow for themselves; it adds an extra fee to them of $50.  Mr. Dalotto stated this enhances incentive for diversion 
of medicine from the patient.  Mr. Dalotto stated given that, there has been the problem of patient and grower relationships 
where the patient and grower don’t understand each other’s needs because sometimes there are less than legal intentions; 
when those relationships go bad, the patient needs a way to get out of that relationship and paying $100 change fee often 
locks the lowest income and most disabled patients from getting out of that bad relationship.  Mr. Dalotto stated both the 
ACMM and the Rules Advisory Committee (RAC) another fee structure that was much less damaging on the low income, 
disabled patients but received no response from the Ways and Means Committee.  Mr. Dalotto stated the ACMM felt they 
have a statutory obligation to advise on the fee structure.   
 
Ms. Smith stated with this alternative proposed structure there were administrative hearings, which was money wasted by 
the OMMP when there was no intention of these rules ever being passed.  Ms. Burbank stated when the ACMM found out 
about the proposed fee increase it was almost by accident.  Ms. Burbank stated Barry Kast admitted in a taped meeting that 
he deliberately withheld the information from the ACMM.  Ms. Burbank discussed another thing the ACMM tried to do in the 
hearings  was repeatedly ask for a sunset clause;  the response from the hearings officers was that wasn’t going to happen.  
Rep Buckley responded we had a split in the Oregon House in the first time in history -  30 Democrats and 30 Republicans; 
when the agreement was made it could not be changed once the budget was passed and we simply didn’t have the ability to 
do that without unraveling a whole series of agreements.  Rep Buckley stated he asks for the proposals to be sent so he can 
see them personally and get them into the process.  
 
Dave Leland stated when they went into session finding out in the governor’s recommended budget that the general fund 
would be taken out of the Drinking Water Program.  Mr. Leland stated it was literally 11:59 when the general fund was 

replaced mostly with medical marijuana.  Mr. Leland stated for the ACMM to give Representative Buckley what he requested, 
if the ACMM has a need for facts or figures to let OMMP Administration know, and the discussion can be revisited during the 
June meeting after the ACMM has received feedback from Rep Buckley. 
 
Mr. Dalotto stated what the ACMM needs now is information from OMMP Administration to formulate a proposal for Rep 
Buckley.  Mr. Leland responded Rep Buckley was asking for the ACMM to recycle what was put together before and if the 
ACMM needs facts that are up to date to let the OMMP Administration know what that is.  Ms. Nichols stated the ACMM 
should forward information requests to her.  Mr. Dalotto responded the ACMM needs to current financial information such as 
projected revenue, budget, and analysis. 
 
Mr. Klahr discussed earlier during the legislative session he sat in on a budgetary hearing where the head of the panel said 
the State of Oregon received $16.7 billion for Oregon’s budget this year and that 51% of that was marked to OHA.  Mr. 
Leland responded OHA is health care.  Mr. Klahr asked if Mr. Leland has the means to tap into that budget to figure out how 
much the ACMM will get from that.  Mr. Leland responded it doesn’t and the Medical Marijuana Program is entirely supported 
by fees.   

 
Mr. Michaels asked about the Drinking Water Program advisory committee and if that committee is comprised of citizens 
similar to those on the ACMM.  Mr. Leland responded the Drinking Water Advisory Committee is statutory like the ACMM and 
could be referred to in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 448.  Mr. Leland explained the Drinking Water Advisory Committee has 
a combination of organizational and public memberships that the administrator appoints; seats are for environmental groups, 
engineers, cities, privately owned utilities – all with drinking water interest.  Mr. Leland stated the role of the various advisory 
committees is to advise.  Mr. Michaels asked if a person on other advisory committees would feel they had input that was 
heard and put into the process and further asked if that’s typically how the other advisory committees are run.  Mr. Leland 
responded yes. 
  

 



ACMM MEETING MINUTES MARCH 11, 2013   6     6  

 ACMM OFFICER ELECTION 

                                               
JIM KLAHR 

DISCUSSION  

Elections for Chair and Vice Chair of the ACMM were held.  For appointment of Chair Ms. Burbank nominated Mr. Dalotto.  
Mr. Mackaness seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  For appointment of Vice Chair Mr. Michaels 
nominated Ms. Smith.  Mr. Klahr seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE 
OUTCOME 

Motion: By Ms. Burbank to nominate Mr. Dalotto as Chair of the ACMM.  
Second by Mr. Mackaness.   

Ms. Burbank 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

ACTION ITEMS 
PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE 

OUTCOME 

Motion: By Mr. Michaels to nominate Ms. Smith as Vice Chair of the ACMM.  
Second by Mr. Klahr.   

Mr. Michaels 
Motion passed 
unanimously 

 

 PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMENT 
 

                 PUBLIC - ACMM 

DISCUSSION  

Jean Adams discussed an article she had recently read regarding medical marijuana for pets and wonders how that fits into 
the program.  Ms. Adams asked if medical marijuana were legalized what would happen to the government jobs involved.  
Ms. Adams discussed books on medical marijuana that she believes are useful.  Ms. Adams stated her main question is she 
heard some kind of research program exists that growers can get into to learn how to grow different strains.  Ms. Smith 
responded there was an article written in Cannabis Connection stating marijuana is not good for dogs as it causes horrible 
neurological problems and is not safe. 
 
Claire Dalzell asked if an applicant did not submit an Oregon ID what ID number would be printed on the registry 
identification card.  Ms. Dalzell also asked if fees from OMMP go toward the Oregon Health Plan (OHP).  Mr. Cossel 
responded the number from whatever government agency issued ID the applicant submitted would be printed on the registry 
identification card.  Mr. Cossel stated OMMP fees do not go to the OHP and all programs receiving money from the OMMP are 
Public Health programs. 

 
Anthony Taylor led an overview of legislative updates.  Mr. Taylor discussed Senate Bill 281, House Bill 2052, House Bill 
3371, House Bill 3055, Senate Bill 794, Senate Bill 40, and House Bill 3140. 

  

MEETING AJOURNED 2:31 PM 

MINUTES SUBMITTED BY Roni Carroll 

SPECIAL NOTES  

 

 


